1986

# Layton City v. Billy E. Noon : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

1. Did the trial court err in denying defendant's motion to dismiss for lack of probable cause to make an arrest?
2. Was defendant denied a fair trial due to ineffective assistance of counsel?

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On November 30, 1985, defendant was arrested for violation of §41-6-44, Layton Municipal Code, driving under the influence of alcohol. (R. 2,8; Addendum 1). An information was filed charging him with this offense. (Addendum 2) A one day jury trial was held on March 4, 1986 in the Fourth Circuit Court of Davis County, Layton Department, before the Honorable K. Roger Bean. (R. 3-5, Tr. 1) The following facts were revealed at trial.

The defendant drove his car into the parking lot of the Circle K at the corner of Main and Antelope Drive, Layton, at approximately 9 p.m. (Tr.22,50,145) A clerk at the Circle K, Matt Wilhelm, saw defendant drive into the parking lot

"pretty fast." (Tr. 22) Defendant parked his car and went into the store. (Tr. 23) Mr. Wilhelm testified that defendant was stumbling (Tr. 24), his speech was slurred and he spilled coffee from a cup he had obtained in the store. (Tr. 25) Wilhelm also claimed he smelled alcohol on his breath. (Tr. 25) When defendant left the store to turn off his car lights, Wilhelm called the police. (Tr. 26) Defendant reentered the store and the police arrived approximately five minutes after Wilhelm had called. (Tr. 39) Defendant was still in the store when the police arrived. (Tr. 28) There was no testimony as to what defendant was doing during those five minutes.

Once Wilhelm pointed the defendant out to the police, Officer Robnett, Layton City Police, walked over to the defendant and asked him to blow into his hand. (Tr. 58) After defendant had complied, Robnett asked him to step outside of the store and perform some field sobriety tests. (Tr. 58) Defendant performed the tests as requested by Robnett and was subsequently placed under arrest "for his own safety." (Tr. 63)

Robnett asked defendant to repeat the field sobriety tests at the station. (Tr. 97-8,108) Robnett also testified that he requested the defendant perform a breathalyzer test at the police station. (Tr. 66) Defendant attempted to comply, but the results were never obtained. (Tr. 152) Officer Robnett was allowed to testify without objection concerning defendant's supposed "refusal" to take the test. (Tr. 67-70)

At the conclusion of the State's evidence, defendant moved to dismiss on two grounds: (1) no proof of corpus delicti and (2) lack of probable cause to arrest for driving under the influence of alcohol. (Tr. 131) The motions were denied. (TR. 131)

The jury found defendant guilty of driving while under the influence of alcohol, a class B misdemeanor, in violation of §41-6-44, Layton Municipal Code. (R. 25, Tr. 188) At trial, defendant was represented by attorney Christopher L. Shaw. (Tr. 3) After the jury verdict and prior to sentencing, defendant discharged Mr. Shaw and retained present counsel to represent him in this matter. (R. 27-29)

On March 26, 1986, defendant was sentenced to jail for 180 days with 120 days suspended, ordered to submit to assessment by and undergo a treatment program with the Utah Alcohol Foundation, and ordered to pay fines and restitution totaling \$408.00. (R. 30) On April 23, 1986, the trial judge denied defendant's motion for arrest of judgment and order of acquittal or in the alternative for a new trial. (R. 31-2, 41-2) Defendant appealed to the Second District Court, Honorable Douglas L. Cornaby presiding. Memoranda of points and authorities were filed by both parties. (R. 52-61, 63-74) After oral argument held on July 22, 1986, the District Court upheld the Circuit Court's verdict in a July 25, 1986 ruling. (R. 76-7) Defendant subsequently took an appeal to this Court. (R. 78-9)

Defendant's sentence has been stayed pending the outcome of this appeal.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. The arresting officer did not have probable cause to arrest defendant for driving under the influence of alcohol since the officer never saw defendant drive, there was no verification of the informant's testimony placing defendant in a vehicle and the informant did not testify concerning an erratic driving pattern by defendant. There was also a delay in time between when the informant claimed he saw defendant drive and when he was approached by the police. In addition, the arresting officer was so unsure about defendant's condition that he asked defendant to perform additional field sobriety tests after he had been placed under arrest and taken to the police station.

2. Defendant was denied effective assistance of counsel at trial since his attorney on several occasions during the state's case failed to interpose objections to testimony that should have been inadmissible under the Utah Rules of Evidence. The testimony was prejudicial to defendant and denied him a fair trial.

## ARGUMENT

### I. PROBABLE CAUSE DID NOT EXIST TO ARREST DEFENDANT FOR DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF ALCOHOL.

A warrantless arrest is permitted for violation of §41-6-44, U.C.A. (1953, as amended), as follows:

§41-6-44 (8). A peace officer may, without a warrant, arrest a person for violation of this section when the officer has probable cause to believe the violation has occurred, although not in his presence, and if the officer has probable cause to believe that the violation was committed by the person.

#### Addendum 1.

Probable cause is thus the standard by which the constitutionality of the police officer's actions in questioning the defendant and subsequently arresting him is to be weighed. See Utah Constitution, Article I, Section 14; United States Constitution, Fourth Amendment. Addendum 3. The Utah Supreme Court has defined "reasonable" or "probable" cause as follows:

The determination should be made on an objective standard: whether from the facts known to the officer, and the inferences which fairly might be drawn therefrom, a reasonable and prudent person in his position would be justified in believing that the suspect had committed the offense.

State v. Hatcher, 27 Utah 2d 318, 495 P.2d 1259, 1260 (1972), (fn. omitted). "This level of probability must exist at the actual moment of arrest,..., and must be based on known facts,...." People v. Severson, 561 P.2d 373, 375 (Colo. App. 1977) (citations omitted).

Based on the facts personally known to the officer, he did not have probable cause to arrest defendant for driving under the influence. "Probable cause may rest on reasonably trustworthy information from an informant. However, some of the details of the information given by the informant must be verified before an arrest." Pistro v. State, 590 P.2d 884, 886 (Alaska, 1979) (emphasis added) (fn. omitted). See also People v. Ramey, 16 Cal.3d 263, 127 Cal. Rptr. 629, 545 P.2d 1333, 1336 (1976). Here, there was no such verification as to whether defendant had actually been driving an automobile sometime prior to Officer Robnett's encounter with him in the Circle K. Defendant made no admission of either drinking or ownership of an automobile at any time, whether prior to or after his arrest. (Tr. 65-7)

The arresting police officer never saw the defendant driving so had no opportunity to observe whether his driving pattern was normal or not. The only data available to the officer at the time of the arrest which linked defendant to the car was the statement of Matt Wilhelm. (Tr. 56) There was no testimony which led conclusively to the inference that defendant was intoxicated while driving.

Defendant was in the Circle K for a period of time prior to the arrival of the police. There was no testimony as to what activities defendant was involved in while in the store. The Circle K and other convenience stores of its genre provide beer for sale to the public. The State's evidence failed to exclude the possibility that defendant consumed beer while on the premises sufficient to obtain the odor of

alcohol about his person and to render him intoxicated.

Indeed, the arresting officer was so unsure that defendant was actually intoxicated that he requested the defendant to again perform field sobriety tests at the station after defendant has been arrested. (Tr. 97-8, 108)

Based on the above discussion, defendant's arrest was without probable cause and defendant's motion to dismiss on this basis was improperly denied by the trial court.

## II. INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL DENIED DEFENDANT A FAIR TRIAL.

As the result of the ineffective assistance of his counsel at trial, defendant was denied the right to counsel guaranteed by the Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution and Article I, Section 12 of the Utah Constitution. (Addendum 4) The Utah Supreme Court has recently held that in order to challenge a conviction on the basis of ineffective assistance of counsel,

it is the defendant's burden to show: (1) that his counsel rendered a deficient performance in some demonstrable manner, and (2) that the outcome of the trial would probably have been different but for counsel's error.

State v. Geary, 707 P.2d 645, 646 (Utah, 1985) (citations omitted).

An accused in a criminal case has "the right to have competent counsel who will take such actions and present whatever defenses and interpose whatever objections he can in honesty and good conscience justify in the interest of his

client." State v. Gray, 601 P.2d 918, 920 (Utah, 1979) (fn. omitted).

Defense counsel committed several errors in his representation of defendant. First, the prosecutor was allowed to lead witness Wilhelm on direct examination numerous times concerning facts central to the alleged offense. (Tr. 24-8 43-6) The testimony was damaging and the manner in which it was elicited served to compound its impact.

Second, counsel failed to object to witness Wilhelm's lengthy, extremely prejudicial and irrelevant explanation as to why he called the police to report the defendant. (Tr. 26) Such testimony should have been excluded under Rule 402, Utah Rules of Evidence, (irrelevant evidence inadmissible) and Rule 403 (exclusion of prejudicial evidence). (Addendum 5)

Third, Officer Robnett was permitted to testify without objection regarding his conversation with Mr. Wilhelm prior to Robnett's questioning of the defendant. (Tr. 55-56) The statements made to Officer Robnett by Mr. Wilhelm were offered to prove the truth of the matter asserted and were inadmissible hearsay and should not have been admitted into evidence. See Rule 802, Utah Rules of Evidence. (Addendum 5) The statements served to reinforce Mr. Wilhelm's testimony even though his credibility had not been challenged by defendant.

Fourth, Officer Robnett testified without objection regarding defendant's attempts to take the breathalyzer test

and was permitted to read from his report form without showing that this was necessary due to insufficient recollection of the transaction. (Tr. 67-70) Again, these statements were hearsay inadmissible under any of the exceptions to the hearsay rule and should have been excluded under Rule 802, Utah Rules of Evidence. (Addendum 5)

Fifth, without adequate foundation, Officer Robnett was permitted to testify to the legal conclusion that defendant refused to submit to the breathalyzer test. (Tr. 70) This conclusion was inadmissible under Rules 701 and 702, Utah Rules of Evidence. (Addendum 5)

The first part of the Geary test has been satisfied since defendant has demonstrated above that trial counsel rendered a deficient performance in some demonstrable manner. As regards the second half of the test, whether the outcome of the trial would probably have been different, it should be pointed out that the evidence against defendant was weak and the arrest was not supported by probable cause. None of the officers involved ever saw defendant's driving pattern, nor did they ever see him in the car. Mr. Wilhelm did not observe any erratic driving behavior either. Since no blood alcohol test was taken, for whatever reason, the jury had to decide if defendant had in fact driven the car and at the time of such driving was under the influence of alcohol based solely on the witnesses' testimony as to defendant's behavior. Given this reliance on subjective, personal observation rather than an objective test, the outcome of the trial could well have been different if counsel had not

committed the errors discussed above. "[A] verdict or conclusion only weakly supported by the record is more likely to have been affected by errors than one with overwhelming record support." Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 696, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 80 L.Ed.2d 674 (1984).