1986

# Layton City v. Billy E. Noon : Brief of Appellee

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

Whether at the close of the City's evidence, the Trial Court properly denied defendant's motion to dismiss for lack of probable cause to effect an arrest, and whether the District Court properly upheld said ruling.

Whether defendant's counsel effectively and adequately represented the defendant, thus affording defendant a fair trial, and whether the District Court's ruling stating so, was proper.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is a criminal case involving a single charge, that being the traffic offense of driving while under the influence of alcohol, a class B misdemeanor.

The violation and the arrest occurred on November 30, 1985 within Layton City. The matter was set for a jury trial in the Fourth Circuit Court, Layton Department of the Davis County District Court, before the Honorable Judge K. Roger Bean. The jury trial was held March 4, 1986 and at the conclusion thereof

the jury returned a verdict of guilty and the judge entered a conviction pursuant thereto.

On April 23, 1986 defendant's motion for arrest of judgment and order of acquittal or, in the alternative, a new trial was heard before Judge Bean. After hearing argument and reviewing the file said motion was denied.

Thereafter, defendant appealed to the Second District Court. Briefs were filed and oral arguments presented to the Honorable Judge Douglas L. Cornaby. The District Court upheld the verdict of the Circuit Court and announced that ruling July 25, 1986.

Defendant now makes this appeal.

#### STATEMENT OF FACTS

In the late evening hours of November 30, 1985, the defendant drove into the parking lot of the Circle K store just west of the corner of Antelope Drive and Main Street, Layton City, Utah. (Tr. 22). The defendant drove the vehicle into the parking lot in such a manner that the Circle K employee's attention was immediately drawn to the vehicle as its lights flashed vertically as the vehicle crossed the driveway approach. (Tr. 34). Defendant then entered in the parking lot and continued at such a rate of speed that the same employee thought the vehicle would come right into the store. The employee, Matt Wilhelm, did not know how, but somehow defendant was able to get the vehicle stopped. (Tr. 22). There were no customers in the store and no other vehicles in the parking lot and Mr. Wilhelm's eyes were "fixed" on the defendant's car. (Tr. 24). Defendant

was the sole occupant of the vehicle. (Tr. 23, 148).

As the defendant entered the store, Mr. Wilhelm immediately began to make observations concerning the manner in which the defendant conducted himself. (Tr. 25). The defendant was walking awkwardly, his speech was slurred, he could not control his cup of coffee and there was an odor of alcohol. (Tr. 25, 26). The defendant could hardly walk, and he was stumbling. (Tr. 27, 38, 46).

Mr. Wilhelm, having no doubt in his mind who was driving the vehicle (Tr. 44), and having observed defendant's condition, became concerned about the potential results of that combination and notified the police. (Tr. 26).

While waiting for the police to arrive, Mr. Wilhelm continued to attempt conversing with defendant in order to delay him so he would not "drive off." (Tr. 28). Shortly thereafter, the officers arrived and directly went up to Mr. Wilhelm to obtain his information concerning the events leading up to his notifying the police. Before approaching defendant, they made sure that Mr. Wilhelm had seen defendant driving, that the witness could have seen what he claims he saw and that it was the same individual that was still in the store. (Tr. 28, 55-57, 74-77, 90, 92). After being satisfied that Mr. Wilhelm was quite positive (Tr. 57), the officers approached and began making their own observations. (Tr. 44, 58-60, 63-66, 78-80, 93-96, 105-108, 118-127, 156).

Based on those observations, their training and experience, the defendant's characteristics, the presence of one car and one



customer and the corroborating information of Mr. Wilhelm, the defendant was placed under arrest for driving a motor vehicle while under the influence of alcohol. (Tr. 63, 67, 140).

Defendant was then transported to the Layton Police Department and was requested to submit to a chemical test of a breath sample. (Tr. 68). Defendant refused to submit to the test. (Tr. 69, 70, 84, 85, 98, 99).

The case was tried to a jury before the Honorable Judge K. Roger Bean on March 4, 1986, and at the conclusion thereof, the defendant was adjudged guilty of driving a motor vehicle while under the influence of alcohol, and a conviction was entered accordingly.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

As set forth in both state statute and case law pursuant to said statute, the officers had probable cause to arrest the defendant for driving under the influence of alcohol. Although the officers did not see the defendant drive, they had contact with the defendant a very short time after the driving had occurred and noticed his extremely intoxicated state. Further, prior to their contact with defendant they spoke with a witness who positively placed defendant as the driver of the vehicle. Defendant's arrest was based on probable cause.

Defendant's trial counsel more than satisfied the minimal performance requirements. It is obvious from the record that he was familiar with these type of trials. Defendant has failed to

establish that trial counsel's performance was ineffective or that the results would have been different.

## ARGUMENT

### PROPOSITION I

THE TRIAL AND DISTRICT COURTS CORRECTLY RULED THAT  
THE POLICE OFFICERS HAD PROBABLY CAUSE TO ARREST  
DEFENDANT.

Defendant's initial assignment of error is that both lower courts erred in ruling that there was probably cause to arrest the defendant for driving under the influence of alcohol. The lower court's rulings are correct as they are founded on state law and this Court's interpretations of said laws.

State statute specifically provides the standard an officer may use in effectuating an arrest for a violation of the "driving under the influence" statute. This standard, set forth in §41-6-44(8), Utah Code Annotated (1953, as amended), and provides that:

A peace officer may, without a warrant, arrest a person for violation of this section when the the officer has probable cause to believe the violation has occurred, although not in his presence, and if the officer has probable cause to believe that the violation was committed by the person.

Admittedly, the officers did not observe the defendant driving a motor vehicle. That is not fatal to this case, in fact, such a situation was contemplated by the drafters of this statute as is indicated by the phrase "although not in his presence . . . ." The Utah State Supreme Court has construed this statute and applied it to facts not unlike those in the case at bar. In State v. Bryan, Utah, 395 P.2d 539 (1964), the Defendant was involved in an automobile accident. The officers arrived at the scene shortly thereafter to find Defendant sitting

on the curb. The officers did not see Bryan driving the vehicle and the only offense committed in the officers' presence was public intoxication. Bryan, supra at 540. That is precisely the situation in the case at bar. However, in Bryan, after the Defendant was transported to the hospital the officers placed him under arrest for driving while intoxicated. The Court ruled that the arrest was lawful regardless of the facts that the arrest was delayed and that the offense did not take place in the officers' presence. Bryan, supra, at 540. In the case at bar, the facts available and known by the police officer provide even a stronger foundation for arrest than that in Bryan, as herein the officers had direct evidence that the defendant was driving. (Tr. 22,23,44).

Defendant has at least conceded that the officer had probable cause to arrest defendant for public intoxication. (Defendant's Statement of Points and Authorities in support of appeal to District Court, p.6). Thus, the scenario in Bryan was nearly followed herein, but instead of delaying the arrest, the officers herein had the necessary probable cause at the initial scene.

Defendant claims that the City failed to account for defendant's activities from the time he arrived at the store until the officers arrived. This, according to defendant, is fatal to the case since a possible alternate explanation for defendant's intoxicated state exists and that this renders the conviction void as defendant "could have" consumed the alcohol at the store. First of all, a substantial amount of defendant's

activities in this short period of time were indeed accounted for. Defendant entered the store and "attempted to buy a cup of coffee." (Tr. 25). As defendant testified, it was in a paper cup (Tr. 148), presumably the same cup Officer Cline observed him holding. (Tr. 91). Also, during this period of time, the defendant returned to his vehicle, turned off the lights and tried to close the trunk (Tr. 25, 26), tried to explain to Mr. Wilhelm the problem with the trunk (Tr. 26, 27), and was being observed by Mr. Wilhelm and continued conversation was attempted. (Tr. 27, 28).

In applying the "probable cause" standard to the case at bar, it is clear that the standard was satisfied by the officers at the time of arrest. That standard, as articulated by the Supreme Court in State v. Hatcher, Utah, 495 P.2d 1259 (1972), is to be objective, as follows:

whether from the facts known to the officer,  
and the inferences which fairly might be drawn  
therefrom, a reasonable and prudent person in  
his position would be justified in believing  
that the suspect had committed the offense.

Hatcher, supra.

In applying that standard to this case, the facts known to the officer were that the defendant was extremely intoxicated, in a public place, was the only customer on the premises and there was only one car in the parking lot. The information received from the eyewitness, Mr. Wilhelm, included that defendant was the driver of that vehicle, was the sole occupant of that vehicle, drove into the parking lot at an alarming speed and an admission that it was defendant's vehicle. This latter type of information

is analogous to that given the officers in Hatcher, wherein solely the information from a witness was used to locate and arrest the Defendant therein without the officers having observed anything first hand.

In the case at bar, the information given the officers by Mr. Wilhelm was corroborated by existing physical evidence, i.e., one car, one customer and an individual so intoxicated that the field sobriety tests were terminated for his own safety. (Tr. 63, 95, 108, 1190). Most assuredly, in using the standard announced in Hatcher, supra, the facts known to the officers, coupled with reasonably deducted inferences, a reasonable and prudent person would be justified in believing that the defendant committed the offense. The officers did have probable cause to arrest defendant for driving under the influence of alcohol pursuant to §41-6-44(8), U.C.A. (1953, as amended). This Court should respond to defendant's contention just as it did to the same argument in State v. Cazier, Utah, 521 P.2d 554, at 556 (1974).

## PROPOSITION II

### DEFENDANT'S TRIAL COUNSEL'S CONDUCT WAS COMMENDABLE AND REFLECTED COMPETENCE.

Defendant's next assignment of error is that, due to alleged ineffective assistance of counsel, defendant was denied a fair trial. In support therefor, defendant has cited five (5) instances wherein, in the opinion of defendant, objections should have been interposed. Based on those five (5) instances and, in defendant's contention, a weak evidentiary foundation for his

conviction, the results of the trial would have been different.

The first alleged error defendant claims counsel made was failure to object to the prosecutor's leading questions of Mr. Wilhelm. It is obvious from the record that the majority of said questions were preliminary in nature. Further, the questions, for the most part, did not suggest an answer that would not or could not have been elicited otherwise.

Secondly, defendant claims that counsel's refraining from objecting to Mr. Wilhelm's narrative was extremely prejudicial. Mr. Wilhelm was testifying as to his state of mind and motivation for notifying the police. (Tr. 26). The objection would have had to have been made during the witness' response as opposed to the conclusion of a question. It may have been that counsel did not object and request for the answer to be stricken as a strategy to avoid actually reinforcing the statement in the jurors' minds. It should be noted that when the prosecutor attempted to elicit an additional like response, defense counsel did object and it was kept from the jury. However, it should be noted that the Court's ruling was not that the information was not admissible but rather, it was repetitive. Thus even if an initial objection had been made it may have been overruled and then that testimony would have been heard immediately after that ruling and would have been more emphasized to the jury.

The third alleged error was counsel's refraining from objecting to Officer Robnett's recitation of Mr. Wilhelm's information to the officer. Defendant asserts that this was objectionable hearsay. Such evidence could have been offered for

other reasons, such as to show what information the officers received from Mr. Wilhelm as well as for corroboration of the witnesses' testimonies. The information contained in the statements had already been established directly from Mr. Wilhelm, rendering any alleged prejudice or harm negligible.

The fourth alleged error by defense counsel was the allowing of Officer Robnett to read from a report without establishing need for refreshing his memory. Defense counsel most assuredly knew that if such an objection was made, it would be merely a procedural formality to establish a foundation and upon doing that, the possibility of the entire report being admissible could be an undesirable result for the defense. (Rule 612, U.R.E.).

Fifth alleged error by defense counsel was allowing Officer Robnett to testify concerning defendant's refusing to submit to the intoxilyzer test. Evidence concerning a refusal to submit to such a chemical test is specifically allowed by statute. §41-6-44.10(8) U.C.A. (1953 as amended). Further, the officer testified how he arrived at the opinion that defendant refused. Such opinion testimony is admissible under both Rules 701 and 702 of the Utah Rules of Evidence.

It is clear from the record that these alleged errors, either singularly or cumulatively, had little, if any impact on the outcome of the trial. That defendant has only been able to find five (5) alleged errors from a transcript of 190 pages is indicative of defense counsel's performance. As has been established, appellate courts "do not second guess an attorney's legitimate exercise of judgment, as to trial tactics or strategy."



Codianna v. Morris, 660 P.2d 1101 (Utah 1983), citing State v. McNicol, Utah, 554 P.2d 203 (1976).

Further, when these alleged errors are viewed in relation to the substantial evidence supporting the verdict, the insignificance thereof is apparent.

This contention is without merit.

### PROPOSITION III

#### THE JURY VERDICT BELOW IS WELL SUPPORTED BY THE EVIDENCE.

The elements that the City was required to satisfy were that 1) on or about the 30th day of November, 1985, defendant drove a vehicle; 2) that at that time, defendant was under the influence of alcohol to a degree that rendered him incapable of safely driving a vehicle; and 3) that these acts took place within Layton, Utah.

Direct evidence established that defendant was indeed driving a vehicle. (Tr. 22, 23, 44). This was subsequently admitted to by defendant. (Tr. 148). There was no dispute that this all occurred within Layton City. (Tr. 50). As for the element of defendant's degree of impairment, Mr. Wilhelm and the three officers independently concluded that defendant was extremely intoxicated and the officers opined, based on their training, experience and observations of defendant that he was not capable of safely driving a vehicle. (Tr. 65, 96, 120).

The only remaining element was to establish that defendant was so intoxicated and impaired while driving the vehicle. Based on the above referenced direct evidence and the manner in which

Mr. Wilhelm saw the vehicle approach the store and with the proximity in time of defendant's driving and the observation of his intoxicated state, clearly a reasonable inference that may be drawn therefrom is that defendant was intoxicated while driving. Making such reasonable inferences based on the direct evidence is a proper function of the trier of fact, State v. Kazda, Utah, 392 P.2d 686 (1964); State v. Maestas, Utah, 652 P.2d 903 (1982).

The jurors so found.

#### PROPOSITION IV

##### STANDARD OF REVIEW

Initially, it is the defendant's burden to establish that "the evidence was so inconclusive or insubstantial that reasonable minds must have entertained a reasonable doubt that the defendant committed the crime charged." State v. Kerekes, Utah 622 P.2d 1161 (1980), (citing State v. Daniels, Utah, 584 P.2d 880 (1978)). This standard and language has been repeated and reiterated on numerous occasions and is found again in State v. Lairby, 699 P.2d 1187 (Utah 1984). Defendant has failed to satisfy this burden.

This Court's role in reviewing appeals from criminal convictions has been well established. In reviewing the conviction, it is incumbent upon the appellate court to assume that the jury believed those aspects of the evidence which support the verdict. State v. Smathers, Utah, 602 P.2d 708 (1979). Further, on appeal the evidence, including the reasonable inferences which may be fairly drawn therefrom, will

be reviewed in a manner that will support the jury verdict.  
State v. Schoenfeld, Utah, 545 P.2d 193 (1976). Finally, on these appeals from criminal convictions, the evidence is to be viewed "in a light most favorable to the jury's verdict and will reverse only when the evidence is so unsubstantial that a reasonable person could not have reached the verdict beyond a reasonable doubt." State v. Haro, 703 P.2d 301 (Utah 1985), (citing State v. Brooks, Utah, 638 P.2d 537 (1981), and State v. Howell, Utah 649 P.2d 91 (1982)).

It is obvious from the record that the evidence supporting the City's contention was substantial and gave the jury a solid foundation on which to base the verdict.

#### CONCLUSION

Pursuant to the case law set forth herein, it is clear that the results in case at bar are in line with the previous rulings announced by the State Supreme Court. The defendant's arrest was proper and in accordance with §41-6-44(8) U.C.A. (1953); and the elements of the offense were well proven by substantial and generally uncontested evidence. It is clear that the verdict herein must be affirmed.

WHEREFORE, Layton City respectfully prays this Court uphold the findings of the jury, the trial court, and the district court and affirm the finding of guilt.